

MINUTES

Licensing Sub-Committee (1)

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of a meeting of the **Licensing Sub-Committee (1)** Committee held on **Thursday 11th May, 2017**, Rooms 5, 6 & 7 - 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6 QP.

Members Present: Councillors Angela Harvey (Chairman) and Louise Hyams

1 MEMBERSHIP

Apologies were received from Councillor Susie Burbridge.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3 REAL ALE LTD, 4 FORMOSA STREET, W9

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE No. 1

Thursday 11th May 2017

Membership: Councillor Angela Harvey (Chairman) and Councillor Louise

Hyams

Legal Adviser: Horatio Chance Policy Adviser: Chris Wroe

Committee Officer: Jonathan Deacon Presenting Officer: Heidi Lawrance

Relevant Representations: Environmental Health, 1 Amenity Society and 5 local

residents.

Present: Mr Zeph King (Managing Director, Applicant Company), Mr Nick Dolan

(Deputy Chairman, Applicant Company), Mr Maxwell Koduah

(Environmental Health), Mr Richard Brown (Solicitor, Citizens Advice Bureau Licensing Advice Project, representing Ms Elizabeth Virgo), Ms Elizabeth Virgo (Chairman, Paddington Waterways and Maida Vale

Society) and Mr Gray, local resident.

Real Ale Ltd, 4 Formosa Street, W9 17/02715/LIPN

1. Sale by retail of alcohol (On)

Monday 12:00 to 21:00 Tuesday to Sunday 12:00 to 21:30

Amendments to application advised at hearing:

None.

Decision (including reasons if different from those set out in report):

The Sub-Committee heard from Mr King, Managing Director of the Applicant Company. He stated that the Real Ale team had operated a similar shop in Twickenham since 2005 and that it is also located in a residential street. The Sub-Committee was advised that Mr Dolan lives above the store in Twickenham and the team were therefore aware of the need to prevent noise causing nuisance to residents in Formosa Street. Mr Robert Wright who also lived above the shop had written a representation in support of the application.

Mr King advised that the Applicant had agreed Environmental Health ("EH") and Police proposed conditions (the Police had subsequently withdrawn their representation) and commented that they would promote the licensing objectives. He believed that the store with its sale predominantly of premium craft beers, many of which were not available in supermarkets would offer something new to the City and the neighbourhood which was currently lacking. He wished to emphasise that the proposed hours had been reduced and regulated entertainment had been withdrawn from the application. There would be no parties at the premises and it would not be a pub. It would be a shop for discerning drinkers and would attract customers who were interested in the quality of the product not how much quantity they could drink. Craft beer was not about binge drinking. The Applicant stated to the Sub-Committee that they were the beer equivalent of fine wine merchants. Mr King explained that the Applicant had listened to the needs of the residents and also the requirements of the Police and EH and had significantly changed the application.

Mr King advised that it was proposed that there would be 18 seated customers at the premises. On sales of beers would only be sold in ½ or ⅓ pint glasses only. On sales would cease at 21:30. In order to minimise noise, it was intended to have the majority of customers in the basement. There would be no outside drinking. Mr King stated that the Applicant would remain considerate to neighbours. They did not want people hanging around the shop, blocking the pavement. It was confirmed that all staff had personal licences.

Mr Dolan, Deputy Chairman of the Applicant Company, informed those present that in terms of correspondence with the Police, PC Janes had agreed to

remove a condition that 'no super-strength beer, lagers, ciders or spirit mixtures of 5.5% alcohol by volume or above shall be sold at the premises, except for premium beers and ciders supplied in glass bottles'. It was his understanding that on-sales were not an issue for the Police. Ms Lawrance confirmed that the correspondence setting out that the Police were content for the proposed condition to be deleted had been received by the Council's Licensing Service.

Mr Dolan provided some additional information to the Sub-Committee, including that his company was the largest supplier in terms of range of beers and ciders to Marks and Spencers, providing 230 to them nationally. The philosophy was in particular to help promote small British microbreweries but the company did also stock beers from around the world at the Twickenham shop. He and the current shop manager lived above the Twickenham shop and he re-iterated that the company was attuned to the needs of local residents. The company was keen to work with its neighbours in Formosa Street. The Sub-Committee was advised that in Twickenham, the company supported a number of local charities. In response to a question from the Sub-Committee, Mr Dolan confirmed thathe was keen to be involved with the community in Formosa Street, including charitable work.

Mr Dolan explained that the company wished to hold tasting events known as 'Meet the brewer' at the premises in Formosa Street. The Applicant stated that they held approximately 12 to 18 events a year in Twickenham. It was proposed that the tasting events would be held in the basement in Formosa Street to reduce the potential for nuisance to be caused to residents. Tickets for the tasting events would be sold in advance in order that the Applicant would know what numbers would be in attendance. There would be at least two members of staff on site at any one time. The Sub-Committee was advised that for tasting events, there would always be at least one member of staff in the basement. In response to a question from the Sub-Committee, Mr Dolan replied that there were approximately 20-30 people who attended each of the 'Meet the brewer' sessions in Twickenham.

Mr Dolan provided further information in response to questions from the Sub-Committee. There were likely to be more than two staff on duty at the shop in Formosa Street at peak times such as weekends or Thursday and Friday afternoons/evenings. In terms of staff training, Mr Dolan stated that the Applicants were happy to provide a telephone number to residents that they could call in the event of any issues arising within the Premises. In terms of training staff, they were all required to obtain a personal licence and be aware of the contents of the employee handbook. In respect of training the Sub-Committee was advised that staff were required to shadow the store manager or two assistant managers for a minimum of a month. There was also refresher training for staff. Mr Dolan was also asked about non-alcoholic beers and gave the answer that the Twickenham shop had one of the largest ranges of non-alcoholic beer for sale in London. There was a definite move towards non-alcoholic beers and low alcoholic beers.

The Sub-Committee heard from Mr Koduah, representing the Council's Environmental Health department ('EH'). The Sub-Committee noted that the Applicant had agreed EH's proposed conditions. Mr Koduah advised that he

had proposed a condition to prevent tables and chairs outside and also a condition to prevent the premises becoming a pub. The sale of alcohol would be ancillary to the premises remaining a specialist craft beer shop. EH was also seeking a capacity of 20 who were able to consume alcohol due to there being one toilet at the premises. The Sub-Committee was advised that the Applicant was proposing a maximum of 8 people on the ground floor. However, the majority of customers would be in the basement and the ground floor would act as a buffer in relation to any noise transmission from the basement given that there were residents above. EH had suggested a maximum of 5 persons smoking outside after 21:00. The Applicant had agreed conditions that all waste would be placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes before the scheduled collection times and that no waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, would be moved, removed from or placed in outside areas between 23:00 and 08:00 on the following day.

The Sub-Committee asked the Applicant when they intended to put collections of waste or recyclable materials, including bottles outside. Mr Dolan responded that any waste or recyclable materials would be put outside just as the collection was coming to the door. It was stated that at the Twickenham shop, waste was picked up at a specific time as part of a commercial agreement. The Applicant was content to limit the movement of waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, to between 08:00 and 20:00.

Mr Koduah added that taking into account a number of factors, including that EH's proposed conditions had been accepted, he had some confidence in management being able to deal with matters of concern to residents. He referred to there being no presumption to refuse the application as Formosa Street was outside the designated cumulative impact areas. He had no objections or concerns with the application. He clarified in response to a question from the Sub-Committee that the premises could safely accommodate 60 people but due to there being only one toilet under the British Standard the capacity was reduced to 20 who were able to consume alcohol at any one time. He was reassured in respect of the safety arrangements, particularly with one member of staff in the basement to assist customers including in the event of an emergency.

It was clarified to the Applicant that they would be able to have tastings sessions without the need for temporary event notices and that the capacity of 20 who were able to consume alcohol would continue to apply for those sessions. Mr King and Mr Dolan informed the Sub-Committee that they would not be hiring out the basement area and that they intended to hold the events from 19:00 to 21:00. They would be held infrequently.

The Sub-Committee heard from Ms Virgo, Chairman, Paddington Waterways and Maida Vale Society. She referred to the difficulty of finding a suitable long term business at 4 Formosa Street. She advised the Sub-Committee there was a certain amount of 'hubbub' in the vicinity of the premises with a pub opposite and restaurants with tables and chairs outside. The pavement was narrow and with the increased footfall, walking along it during the evening could be difficult. Ms Virgo was keen that the number of smokers outside the premises was limited and recommended that the awning was down whilst the shop was open

to limit the potential for smoke and noise causing a nuisance.

Ms Virgo commented that she had been impressed by the Applicants' commitment to make the business work. She was hopeful that it would succeed and that the application would be granted. She believed that as a result of what the Applicant had agreed, the shop would not add greatly to the hubbub. She was keen that the conditions on the application prevented the premises becoming a pub in the event the business was sold.

Mr Brown, representing Ms Virgo, stated that he had discussed with the other parties present having more robust conditions on the premises licence. He requested a slight amendment to EH's proposed condition so that 'the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall at all times be ancillary to the premises remaining a specialist craft beer retail shop'. He believed that this would prevent the premises becoming a bar. He also requested that the number of smokers outside would be limited to a maximum of five at all times and not just after 21:00.

The Applicant was asked whether they were also willing to agree a deliveries condition. Mr Dolan replied that the ability to have deliveries to the premises between 08:00 and 18:00 would be acceptable to them.

The Sub-Committee heard from Mr Gray, a local resident. He advised the Sub-Committee that he lives directly opposite the premises in 4 Formosa Street. He expressed concerns that the Applicants were seeking a different business model from the one in Twickenham and that therefore the experience of local residents in Twickenham was not necessarily comparable. It was stated that the Twickenham shop was an off-licence whereas people could sit inside the premises and drink. Mr Gray made the point that the locality of Formosa Street was more residential than at Twickenham. His chief concerns were noise and drunken behaviour from customers of the premises which would add to the other businesses which already sell alcohol.

Mr Gray clarified that he was not concerned about off sales or infrequent tasting events. He did take the view that the situation would be improved if the Applicant was content to have the awning down whilst the shop was open. He also was of the view that it was an improvement that there would not be tables and chairs outside 4 Formosa Street. His concern was up to twenty customers being able to drink inside the premises seven days a week and up to five of the customers being able to smoke outside at any one time. He did not see a distinction from a pub and believed the premises could become a destination venue. Customers would be noisy after they had consumed a few drinks.

Mr Gray also had some concerns that the new premises would have an adverse impact in terms of re-mortgaging his flat. The Legal Adviser to the Committee explained that the re-mortgaging of the flat could not be a relevant factor in the Sub-Committee's decision making because it fell outside the scope of the licensing regime but more importantly had no such bearing on the licensing objectives.

Mr Gray did bring to the Sub-Committee's attention that even generally well

behaved customers at the tables and chairs outside the Red Pepper at 8 Formosa Street were able to cause a nuisance. Mr Koduah advised that there had been no complaints received by the Council's Noise Team in respect of The Red Pepper. The Sub-Committee recommended that residents contact the Noise Team if they were affected by noise nuisance.

Mr Dolan in response to the comments made at the hearing stated that it was intended to have the awnings down at the shop whilst it was open. The Applicant were content to limit the maximum number of smokers outside at any one time to three. He also wished to make the point that the Applicant would not sell alcohol to intoxicated people. There were proposed conditions to ensure that there would be no noise emanating from the premises and notices would be displayed requesting patrons to leave the area quietly.

The Sub-Committee had noted that there had been representations in relation to the entrance to the residential properties above the premises. The Sub-Committee had seen a photograph where the florists next door had positioned an A-board in front of the entrance. The Applicants asked whether customers, particularly smokers, would be directed away from the entrance to the residential properties. Mr Dolan answered that customers would be directed away from the entrance and it would be kept clear at all times.

The Sub-Committee had read all the written representations and listened carefully to the comments made by the parties at the hearing. The Sub-Committee considered that the Applicant had also carefully taken into account matters raised by residents and the Responsible Authorities and had amended their application accordingly both prior to and during the hearing. The Applicant had agreed conditions proposed by Metropolitan Police and EH and these had included that there would be no tables and chairs outside and limiting the maximum number of smokers outside to five at any one time after 21:00. During the hearing the Applicant had made further commitments, including limiting the times for deliveries and movement of bottles and reducing the maximum number of smokers outside to three at any one time throughout the operating hours.

The Sub-Committee considered in granting the application that the business model, with the proposed conditions attached to the premises licence would promote the licensing objectives. The Applicant had made it clear that they would not operate the premises as a pub. They wished to be viewed as the beer equivalent of fine wine merchants. They had agreed the condition proposed originally by EH and amended as requested by Ms Virgo/Mr Brown that 'the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall at all times be ancillary to the premises remaining a specialist craft beer retail shop (selling alcohol for consumption off the premises)'. It had also been made clear to the Applicant that it was expected that customers would not leave the premises intoxicated. If any noise emanated from the premises and adversely affected residents, the Applicant would be in breach of the condition attached to the premises licence.

The Sub-Committee noted in granting the application that the Applicant had advised that the 'Meet the brewer' tasting events would take place infrequently. This would be in the region of 12 to 15 events per year. The Applicantstated that the events would not continue beyond 21:00. The Sub-Committee

considered that the shop would be of benefit to the community. The Sub-Committee was pleased to hear that the Applicant intended to bring their charitable activities to the neighbourhood. The Sub-Committee also welcomed the idea that the awning would be down whilst the premises was open. Amendments made to the conditions by the Sub-Committee in relation to discussions earlier in the hearing included that the number of persons permitted to consume alcohol in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall not exceed 20 persons, with no more than 8 persons on the ground floor at any one time and also that the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall be by waiter or waitress service only and to persons seated. 2. Sale by retail of alcohol (Off) Monday 10:00 to 21:30 Tuesday to Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 Amendments to application advised at hearing: None. Decision (including reasons if different from those set out in report): Granted, subject to conditions as set out below (see reasons for decision in Section 1). Hours premises are open to the public Monday 10:00 to 21:30 Tuesday to Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 Amendments to application advised at hearing: None. Decision (including reasons if different from those set out in report): Granted, subject to conditions as set out below.

Conditions attached to the Licence

Mandatory Conditions

- 1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of this licence.
- 2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.
- 3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.
- 4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
 - (2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—
 - (a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to;
 - (i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
 - (ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
 - (b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
 - (c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
 - (d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;
 - (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

- 5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available.
- 6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
 - (2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
 - (3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—
 - (a) a holographic mark, or
 - (b) an ultraviolet feature.
- 7. The responsible person must ensure that—
 - (a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—
 - (i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
 - (ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
 - (iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
 - (b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers on the premises; and
 - (c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor. For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol.

8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

- 8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above -
 - (a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
 - (b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -

P = D + (DxV)

Where -

- (i) P is the permitted price,
- (ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
- (iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
- (c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -
 - (i) the holder of the premises licence,
 - (ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
 - (iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
- (d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
- (e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.
- 8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that subparagraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
- 8(iv). (1) Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
 - (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Additional Conditions

- 9. There shall be effective management and training of all staff on at least an annual basis in the sale of alcohol in order to meet the requirement of the Licensing Act 2003 and to provide such records of training to an authorised council officer on request.
- 10. There shall be a notice on the shop front showing the normal hours of opening and closing, to which licensed activities are permitted.
- 11. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 20.00 and 08.00 on the following day.
- 12. Management will encourage customers to move on from the premises and not cause nuisance both during opening hours and also once the premises have closed.
- 13. An appropriate cigarette receptacle will be installed outside of the premises to keep cigarette litter to a minimum.
- 14. The sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall at all times be ancillary to the premises remaining a specialist craft beer retail shop (selling alcohol for consumption off the premises).
- 15. There shall be no bar servery within the basement area.
- 16. There shall be no tables and chairs placed outside the premises.
- 17. The number of persons permitted to consume alcohol in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall not exceed 20 persons, with no more than 8 persons on the ground floor at any one time.
- 18. The supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall be by waiter or waitress service only and to persons seated.
- 19. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.
- 20. The external door shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours except for the immediate access and egress of persons.
- 21. Notices shall be prominently displayed at the exit requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.
- 22. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall be limited to 3 persons at any one time.
- 23. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes before the scheduled collection times.
- 24. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or placed in outside areas between 20.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the

following day.

- 25. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall take place between 20.00 and 08.00 hours on the following day.
- 26. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.
- 27. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order.
- 28. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans provided.
- 29. All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, code, card or similar means.
- 30. All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other than by an approved device.
- 31. The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous.
- 32. No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing Authority.
- 33. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity.
- 34. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.
- 35. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open.

This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

- 36. A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
- 37. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
 - (a) all crimes reported to the venue
 - (b) all ejections of patrons
 - (c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
 - (d) any incidents of disorder
 - (e) any faults in the CCTV system
 - (f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol
 - (g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
- 38. There shall be a personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when the premises are authorised to sell alcohol.
- 39. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, and shall not be consumed on the premises.
- 40. On sales of beers above 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) shall only be sold in $\frac{1}{2}$ or $\frac{1}{3}$ pint glasses only.
- 41. There shall be no self-service of alcohol for consumption on the premises.
- 42. Food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises.
- 43. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.

4 FRANCESCA, 215 BAKER STREET, NW1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE No. 1

Thursday 11th May 2017

Membership: Councillor Angela Harvey (Chairman) and Councillor Louise

Hyams

Legal Adviser: Horatio Chance Policy Adviser: Chris Wroe

Committee Officer: Jonathan Deacon Presenting Officer: Heidi Lawrance

Francesca, 215 Baker Street, NW1 17/02766/LIPN

Application granted under delegated authority as all objectors to the application had withdrawn their representations.